
*Please note: Times are approximate.  
**The Town shall provide reasonable accommodation for those with disabilities on a case by case basis. Please send 
accommodation requests to clerk@gmfco.us by 4pm on the date of the meeting. 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Regular Parks, Recreation, & Trails Advisory Board Meeting Agenda 
P.O. Box 524; 10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819 
Wednesday, October 07, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

Online Meeting ONLY** 
Join the Zoom Meeting by clicking on the following link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85203528340?pwd=S0tuVUMyaUF5T3FBOWZSTUZ1eDBEZz09&from=msft  
Meeting ID: 852 0352 8340 Passcode: 296993 

To make a public comment please pre-register by 4pm on the day of the meeting via email: clerk@gmfco.us 
 

REGULAR MEETING: 

TIME*  ITEM 
DESIRED 

OUTCOME 
7:00 1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL   
7:00 2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTION TO THE AGENDA  
7:05 3.  PERSONS PRESENT NOT ON THE AGENDA: 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER  
7:10 4. CONSENT AGENDA  
7:10 5. Nomination & Recommended BOT Approval of PRT Secretary PRT Action 

Desired 
7:20 6. Review & Recommended BOT Approval of PRT Bylaws PRT Action 

Desired 
7:30 7. Smith Concern Discussion 
7:40 8. Project List Discussion 
8:00 9. Trails Maps  Discussion 
8:10 10. PRT Master Planning & Go Colorado (GoCO) Grant Opportunities   Discussion 
8:20 11. Trails Ambassador Program Update Informational 

Only 
8:25 12. CORRESPONDENCE   
8:25 13. REPORTS 

a. Chair Report 
b. Vice-Chair Reports 
c. Committee Member Reports  

Information 
Only 

8:30 14. ADJOURN  
 

mailto:clerk@gmfco.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85203528340?pwd=S0tuVUMyaUF5T3FBOWZSTUZ1eDBEZz09&from=msft
mailto:clerk@gmfco.us


 
Parks, Recreation, and Trails Advisory Committee 

Agenda Memorandum 
 

DATE: 10.07.2020 AGENDA NO. 6  SUBJECT: Review & Recommended 
BOT Approval of PRT Bylaws  

Presented by: Goody Goodwin, PRT Chairperson  

Attachments: Draft PRT Bylaws 
 
Background 
Ordinance 2020-03 requests that the Parks, Recreation, & Trails Advisory Committee (PRT) create a guiding 
committee document, referenced as “Bylaws,” and recommend them to the Board of Trustees for review and 
approval. 
 
The PRT reviewed their draft Bylaws at the September 2020 PRT public meeting in detail, and the draft is included 
as an attachment to this memo/agenda item.  
 
Discussion 
All changes from the September 2020 PRT discussion regarding the attached Bylaws were incorporated into the 
attached draft. Does the PRT Advisory Committee have any tadeonal comments or points for discussion, or would a 
member of the PRT like to make a motion to approve the draft Bylaws, and recommend them for approval to the 
Board of Trustees? 
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve the attached PRT Bylaws as stated in the agenda packet and recommend the Bylaws to the BOT 
for their review and final approval. 
 
Alternative Options 

1. Approve the Bylaws amended per PRT discussion. 
2. Reserve the Bylaws for further discussion at the next or a future meeting. 
3. Do not approve the Bylaws.  

 



GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS PARKS, RECREATION AND 
TRAILS

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I 
GENERAL

SECTION 1. POWERS AND DUTIES. The Green Mountain Falls 
Parks, Recreation and Trails Advisory Board (the "PRT"), acting by and 
through its appointed members, shall have all the powers granted by the 
Board of Trustees of Green Mountain Falls (the "Board of Trustees") and 
the Colorado Revised Statutes and shall perform all duties provided 
therein.

SECTION 2. OFFICE. The office of the PRT shall be at the Green 
Mountain Falls Town Hall.

ARTICLE II
DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. APPOINTMENT AND TERMS. The appointment and the 
terms of office of the members of the PRT shall be as provided by 
resolution of the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2. REMOVAL. Members may be removed by the Board of 
Trustees as provided by resolution of the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 3. CODE OF ETHICS. Each member of the PRT shall 
comply with the Town's Code of Ethics as set forth in Article XI, 
Chapter 2, of the Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code, as amended 
(the "Code"). If any member has a conflict of interest, as defined by the 
Code, with regard to any matter before the PRT, the member shall follow 



the disclosure and other requirements of Section 2-62 of the Code, as 
amended.

SECTION 4. ALTERNATES. By resolution, the Board of Trustees has 
appointed alternate members of the PRT. At each meeting of the PRT, if 
a regular member is not present at the time of roll call, an alternate 
member who is present at the time of roll call shall be seated as a 
member for that meeting, by motion of the PRT. Alternate members may 
take part in the discussion of any matter that comes before the PRT, 
except for quasi-judicial matters, in which they may not participate 
unless they have been a) appointed in the place of an absent member for 
the duration of the matter and b) designated to do so by the chair in place 
of an absent member. Alternate members may not serve as officers of the 
PRT.

ARTICLE III
OFFICERS

SECTION 1. ELECTION. The officers of the PRT shall be a Chair, a 
Vice- Chair and a Secretary, they shall be elected annually by the PRT at 
the first regular meeting of each calendar year, and they shall assume 
their duties upon election. In the same manner, the PRT shall also elect a 
secretary who may be a non-member, employee of the Town.
SECTION 2. CHAIR. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the PRT. 
Except as otherwise authorized by resolution of the PRT. The Chair shall 
appoint such standing committees as authorized by a vote of the PRT.

SECTION 3. VICE-CHAIR. The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of 
the Chair in the absence from the Town or incapacity of the Chair; and in 
case of a vacancy in the office of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall perform 



such duties as are imposed on the Chair until such time as the PRT 
selects a new Chair from among its members.

SECTION 4. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall attest to the signature of 
the Chair on documents, keep the records of the PRT, shall record all 
votes, and shall cause to be kept a record of the proceedings of the PRT 
in a journal of proceedings to be kept for such purposes, and shall 
perform all other duties incident to this office. The Secretary may be a 
non-member of the PRT who is employed by the Town.

SECTION 5. ADDITIONAL DUTIES. The officers of the PRT shall 
perform such other duties and functions as may from time to time be 
required by the PRT.

SECTION 6. VACANCIES. Should the office of Chair, Vice-Chair, or 
Secretary become vacant, the PRT shall select a successor from its 
membership at the PRT's next regular meeting to serve for the unexpired 
term of said office, pending approval from the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE IV
MEETINGS

SECTION 1. REGULAR MEETINGS. A regular meeting shall be held 
at Town Hall on the FIRST WEDNESDAY at 1900 [day/time] of each 
month with notice as required by Colorado law and the Code. If 
additional room or facilities are needed, with approval of the Board of 
Trustees or Town Manager, the Chair may change the site of the meeting 
to another public location within the Town of Green Mountain Falls that 
is open and accessible to the general public, provided notice of such 
change is made not less than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting 
time.



SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings may be called by 
the Chair, any 3 members, or the Town Manager with at least 24 hours' 
written notice. When requested, Special Meetings will be scheduled for 
the THIRD WEDNESDAY at 1900 of the month.

SECTION 3. QUORUM. A majority of the appointed non-vacant seats 
shall constitute a quorum, but a smaller number may adjourn until a 
quorum is obtained.

SECTION 4. VOTING. When a quorum is in attendance, action may be 
taken by the PRT upon an affirmative vote of the majority of the 
members present. The yeas and nays shall be entered upon the minutes 
of every meeting, except where there is a unanimous vote.

SECTION 5. ABSENCES. A member who is unable to attend a meeting 
shall notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting, stating the reason 
for his or her absence. More than 3 absences from meetings within any 
calendar year may constitute the basis for removal. Remote participation 
pursuant to rules and regulations adopted by the Board of Trustees, as 
they may be amended, shall not constitute an absence.

SECTION 6. RULES OF PROCEDURE. The meetings of the PRT shall 
be conducted according to the PRT's adopted Rules of Procedure, which 
may, in the future, be revised to include procedures for allowing 
members to participate in meetings through telephonic or digital means.

SECTION 7. OPEN MEETINGS. The PRT shall make all policy 
decisions, pass resolutions, adopt rules and regulations, and take action 
only at meetings open to the public. Notices of meetings shall be posted 
in compliance with the Colorado Open Meetings Law, C.R.S. § 
24-6-401, et seq., and the Code.



ARTICLE V
MANAGEMENT

SECTION 1. POLICIES. The PRT may adopt policies as it deems 
appropriate. All policies shall be reviewed by the Board of Trustees 
before adoption, and all adopted policies shall be available for public 
inspection at the Town Clerk/Town Hall office.

SECTION 2. ANNUAL REPORT AND WORK PLAN. Annually the 
PRT shall present to the Board of Trustees a written report summarizing 
the work of the PRT during the preceding calendar year. At that time, the 
PRT shall also present for the Board of Trustees review and approval a 
proposed work plan for the new year.

SECTION 3. RELATIONSHIP WITH THE TOWN OF GREEN 
MOUNTAIN FALLS. The PRT, its officers and members shall always 
strive to provide regular and comprehensive communications regarding 
the PRT's activities with the Mayor, Board of Trustees and Town 
Manager of the Town of Green Mountain Falls. The PRT shall cooperate 
with the Town of Green Mountain Falls to further the Town's adopted 
goals.

SECTION 4. GIFTS. The TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 
may accept donations on behalf of the PRT in accordance with the 
Town’s Donation Acceptance policy. Donations shall be transmitted 
immediately to the Town Clerk for deposit in a special designated fund 
maintained for this purpose by the Town. Neither the PRT nor any 
member of the PRT shall accept donations on behalf of the Town. Offers 
of donations shall be forwarded to the Town Manager for handling 
according to the Town’s Donation Acceptance policy.

ARTICLE VI



BOOKS AND RECORDS
SECTION 1. RECORDKEEPING. The PRT shall maintain adequate and 
correct accounts of its meetings, policies, resolutions, and activities. All 
records shall be open to inspection by the public at any reasonable time.

SECTION 2. RECORDS TO BE PUBLIC. All resolutions and orders, as 
soon as practicable after their passage, shall be recorded in a book kept 
for that purpose and authenticated by the signature of the Chair and 
attested to by the Secretary. A record shall also be made of all other 
proceedings of the PRT, with minutes of the meetings and reports 
entered into the record. Said records shall be public records, shall be 
open to inspection as required by law, and shall be provided to the Town 
Clerk.

ARTICLE VII
APPROVAL, AMENDMENT TO AND SUSPENSION OF 

BYLAWS
SECTION 1. These Bylaws shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Amendments to these Bylaws are subject 
to Board of Trustee approval after adoption by PRT following first 
reading at the previous meeting.

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION. Any requirement of these Bylaws may be 
waived by a written consent signed by all members, except those 
required by law.

Adopted [date]______________________, by Res. No. _________ 
Approved by the BOT on _________ [date]


































	PRT Agenda 10.07.2020 Regular Meeting
	6. Review & Recomended BOT Approval of PRT Bylaws
	6. PRT Draft Bylaws
	7. Smith Concern
	8. Temporary Trails Map



